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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF YORK 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

CASE NO. 2021-GS-46-02999 

-vs- ) TRANS CRIPT OF RECORD 
) 

NICHOLAS J. CAPUTO, ) 
) 

Defendant. ) 
______________ 

) 

B E F O R E: 

June 3, 2024 
York, South Carolina 

Honorable J. Derham Cole, Judge. 

A PP EA R A N C ES: 

Mr. Mitchell 
Probation Agent 
York County Probation, Pardon and Parole 
York, South Carolina 

Ms. Ugonna Udogwu 
Assistant Public Defender 
Sixteenth Circuit Public Defender's Office 
York, South Carolina 

Shannon E. McGilberry, CVR-M 
Court Reporter 
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THE COURT: All right. This is Nicholas John Caputo? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Who's your lawyer? 

MS. UDOGWU: Ugonna Udogwu of the Public Defender's 

office, Your Honor. 

name. 

said, 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. CAPUTO: It's hard to pronounce, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Sir? 

MR. CAPUTO: Her name is hard to pronounce. 

THE COURT: Why's that? Well, it's not Caputo. 

MR. CAPUTO: Oh. I thought you were talking about her 

THE COURT: I am. You said it's hard to pronounce. I 

well, it's not Caputo, but you could pronounce it if 

you wanted to, couldn't you? 

MR. CAPUTO: Yeah. I could try. 

THE COURT: Okay. You know why you're here? 

MR. CAPUTO: Yes, Your Honor. 

2 

THE COURT: I have before me a warrant, 46-21-0344. It 

alleges that you have failed to comply with the conditions 

of a probationary sentence previously imposed. Do you 

understand what they claim you did or failed to do? 

MR. CAPUTO: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: That you were supposed to be doing in 

compliance with your sentence? 
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MR. CAPUTO: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Well, what's your understanding of the 

allegations? 

MR. CAPUTO: That I absconded on my probation. 

THE COURT: Have you talked to your lawyer about it? 

MR. CAPUTO: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. Is this a recommendation, too? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Okay. But he has a one-year sentence 

suspended to thirteen months? 

MS. UDOGWU: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. 

MS. UDOGOWU: Yes, Your Honor. I've spoken to Mr. 

3 

Caputo about the allegations about the violation of 

probation. Your Honor, he doe,s admit to absconding. He was 

in Las Vegas, but he turned himself in to Gastonia. At that 

point he was sent to Statesville for six -- about six 

months, waiting to serve time from the charges he has in 

North Carolina and he was transferred down here to York 

County on May 21st of this year. So he's been incarcerated 

for over six -- six or eight months now, Your Honor. 

We're asking the Court to terminate probation and time 

serve him on these -- on this violation, Your Honor, since 

the State is only asking for 90 days, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Mitchell. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Your Honor. May it please 

the Court. As the warrant states, saying -- warrant states 

in W46-21-0344, it does state that he failed to report to 

the office on 10/4/2021 and 10/5/2021. Your Honor, he also 

failed to make his whereabouts known; therefore, he has 

absconded from supervision and he failed he to pay on his 
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7 monetary obligations, Your Honor. Your Honor, he is on for 
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diving under suspended less than .10, second offense. 

Your Honor, what the State is asking for is a partial 

revocation of 90 days, convert surcharge to a civil judgment 

and time, as well as Department fees based on the fact of he 

has absconded supervision for nearly three years. He has 

failed to report to the office when instructed. He was 

given several opportunities to report, but he willfully and 

intentionally failed to do so. He hasn't done anything 

while on probation besides accumulate additional charges, to 

which include possession of drugs, lodging in a building 

without permission and possession of burglary tools. The 

arrest were made in Nevada. He was never given permission 

to go to Nevada. He has -- he has failed to fulfill his 

obligation to successfully complete probation for a crime he 

committed; therefore, probation is requesting a partial 

revocation of 90 days and terminate, Your Honor. And I do 

understand what they're stating as far as him doing time, 

but, Your Honor, just take into consideration that that was 
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a crime that he committed in another state, Your Honor, and 

that he done for them and he committed a crime in South 

Carolina, Your Honor, which he needs -- well, he should, 

Your Honor, be able to serve his sentence on that as well, 

Your Honor, for a crime he committed here. 

6 THE COURT: All right. Anything you want to add? 

5 

7 MS. UDOGWU: Yes, Your Honor. I would like to add that 

8 his brother is present in the courtroom and he would like to 

9 address the Court at the appropriate time as well. 

10 THE COURT: All right. 

11 MR. JOSEPH CAPUTO: Thanks for letting me speak, Your 

12 Honor. I'm just here to confirm that my brother 

13 THE COURT: Tell me what your name is. 

14 MR. JOSEPH CAPUTO: Joseph Caputo. 

15 THE COURT: All right. 

16 MR. JOSEPH CAPUTO: I'm just here to confirm that he 

17 has a job waiting for him, family waiting to see him when he 

18 leaves here and I haven't always been the biggest fan of my 

19 brother, the decisions he's made in his life, but I can 

20 stand here and be proud of him for the decisions he's been 

21 making recently, especially to turn himself in. 

22 For the record, we weren't aware that my brother was on 

23 probation in two different states, also for two different 

24 crimes. Whether it's relevant or not, sir, my brother was 

25 gone down a dark road and we wanted to help him the best way 
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1 we can and he didn't have any warrants in this state when I 

2 called in November of last year. So the fact that my 

3 brother was arrested, charged, sentenced in a different 

4 state without the probation knowing anything about this, 

5 not telling us. I had to inform them on the morning of May 

6 20~ after he'd been incarcerated for over seven months at a 

7 different institution. My brother has been doing nothing 

8 but trying to get his life together since then. 

9 We're asking the Court release him so I can take him 

10 home today to see his family, after he turned himself in, 

11 served his time for what I believe something that a lot of 

12 us have been guilty of under this roof and I just ask the 

13 Court recognize the time he's served, whether it be in this 
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state or another state. That's all, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, sir. All right. 

John Caputo, you got anything you want to add? 

MR. CAPUTO: That about sums it all up, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. I find he's willfully failed 

to comply; revoke the balance, give him credit for any time 

he's entitled to pursuant 24-13-40. 

MR. MITCHELL: Revoke the entire balance? 

THE COURT: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. CAPUTO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

(END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT) 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

f E R T I F I f A T E 

COUNTY OF YORK 

I, the undersigned Shannon E. McGilbe,rry, official 

Court Reporter for the Sixteenth Judicial Circuit of the 

State of South Carolina, do hereby certify that the 

7 

foregoing is a true, accurate and complete transcript of the 

record of all proceedings had and evidence introduced in the 

hearing of the captioned case, relative to appeal, in the 

Court of General Sessions for York County, South Carolina, 

on the 3~ day of June, 2024. 

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel, 

nor interest to any party hereto. 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto s-ubscribed my name, 

this 3~ day of October, 2024. 

Shannon E. McGilberry, CVR-M 

My Commission Expires: 

April 26, 2027 
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STATE OF SOUTH C~OLINA 

County of & ~Yl 
STATE 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

Indictment Nu~l 
- GS- 0 {)2,9q9 

Probation CM/#s & issuance dates: \ AJ-lJ.(e - z{ -O::}Jl{ 
t0-t9·U 

AKA: 

Race: w Sex: W\ Name of Original Offense: vd 
DOB: Original AMI#: 

SSN: 

SID#: 
Conviction S.C. Code§: 'S(o- D.S.- Z.C,?j) (..Vt 
Conviction CDR Code#: 3, / 3 / S I (e 
Original Sentence: I ~ { V: { :1¥ Z1{DD R4) S: fhf, ±J//41/JrJ 

ORDER /3M 5US 18 tno~ f'n),, . 

The above named defendant has been ch~l with violating the conditions of probation ordered on __1iC__ I ~ I ..:?::.!._ in the 
Court of General Sessions of 0(4:-- County, and/or the additional conditions ordered by the Court in probation 
continuation order(s) issued on -----------==--------- , as set forth in the attached es) or citation(s). 
After hearing the evidence and being duly advised, in tire {µreseQC)/absence) of the defendant, I find that the above named defendant has 
violated the following condition s) of probation: (List by number or indicate special conditions as provided in the affidavit) 

Theiyfore, IT IS ORDERED that: 
~ the suspended sentence be revoked and the above named defendant be required to serve the remainder of the original sentence. 

□ the suspended sentence be partially revoked and the above named defendant be required to serve _____ days/months/years of 
the original sentence; and 

□ Terminate the balance of probation. 
□ Continue/reinstate probation, subject to the conditions set forth in the original sentence and not inconsistent with this order. 

□ the above named defendant is continued on probation as provided for in the original sentence, subject to the conditions set forth 
therein and not inconsistent with this order. 

□ probation is reduced to time served under supervision and the defendant is discharged from supervision on this date. 

□ the above named defendant is placed on electr~ monitoring pursuant to §23-3-540. 

~ Financial Obligations: Order satisfies: ~ Department fees (arrearage) Civil judgment: 
□ Fines and other fees (arrearage I balance) 

/ 0 Restitution (and 20%) (arrearage / balance) 
~ Additional Conditions ordered by the Court (Jail time credits should not be reported in this section): 

□ J)epartment fees 
~Fines and other fees 
□ Restitution (and 20%) 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

The defendant is given credit for / 3 ~months/years of pre-revocation hearing detention time on current probation 
violation to be calculated and applied l:iy the s"coepartment of Corrections. 

The defendant is to be given credit for ___ __ days/months/years of Hayes credit (N/A if defendant has served prior SCDC time). 

No pre-revocation hearing detention time to be awarded because a citation was issued. 

The defendant was previously placed on active electronic monitoring pursuant to §23-3-540. 

This J day of __,J::__<.,(_11_ -t:._ 

_ _ _ ____,y~,""'Jtt--=--- , SC 
Judicial Circuit 

You are hereby advised that under the law the Court may at any time revoke or modify an condition o this probation; impose any lawful conditions it deems 
proper; or extend your period of probation not to exceed five (5) years. At any time within th 
part of the original sentence imposed. 

DPPPS Form 9 (Stock) Revision: H Revision Date 11· 19-2021 Copy Distributions: White-Clerk of Court; Yellow -SCDC; Pink-Offender File; Gold-Offender 

8



R
ET

U
R

N
 

C
on

st
ab

le
 o

r L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r 

A
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 A

rr
es

t W
a

rr
a

n
t w

as
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

m
e

 t
o

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
de

fe
nd

an
t: 

on
 th

e 

T
hi

s 
W

ar
ra

nt
 

is
 

ce
rt

ifi
ed

 
fo

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 
[C

ou
nt

y 
o

f 
w

ar
ra

nt
 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n]
 C

ou
nt

y.
 

T
he

 a
cc

us
ed

 is
 t

o 
be

 a
rr

es
te

d 
an

d 
br

ou
gh

t 
be

fo
re

 m
e 

to
 d

ea
lt 

w
ith

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 la
w

. 

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 (

L
S

) 

S
ig

na
tu

re
 o

f J
ud

ge
 

F
or

m
 1

6.
1 

(T
em

pl
at

e)
 [

R
ev

is
io

n 
B

 R
ev

is
io

n 
D

at
e 

03
/1

11
20

15
] 

S
T

A
T

E
 O

F
 S

O
U

T
H

 C
A

R
O

L
IN

A
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 O
F

 

YO
R

K 

T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 
a

g
a

in
st

 

N
IC

H
O

LA
S

 J
O

H
N

 C
A

P
U

TO
 

A
R

R
E

S
T

 W
A

R
R

A
N

T
 

O
ffe

ns
e:

 V
io

la
tio

n 
o

f C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f P
ro

ba
tio

n 
S

up
er

vi
si

on
 

O
ff

e
n

se
 S

e
ct

io
n

: 
24

-2
1-

-4
'5

0 

D
at

e:
 1

0/
19

/2
02

1 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 A
g

e
n

cy
: 

S
C

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t o
f 

P
ro

b
a

tio
n

, 
P

a
ro

le
 a

n
d

 P
a

rd
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 

D
an

ze
l M

itc
he

ll 

D
is

p
o

si
tio

n
 

S
e

n
te

n
ce

 

C
o

-D
e

fe
n

d
a

n
ts

 

P
ag

e 
2 

o
f2

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 O

N
 D

E
F

E
N

D
A

N
T

 

N
am

e 
N

IC
H

O
LA

S
 J

O
H

N
 C

AP
U

TO
 

A
dd

re
ss

 

P
h

o
n

e
 

S
ex

 
M

al
e 

Ra
ce

 
\N

hi
te

 
H

ei
gh

t 
60

3 

W
ei

gh
t 

21
0 

B
irt

h 
da

te

S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
 N

um
be

r 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
~

"'
N

=E
=s

s=
E=

s-
--

N
am

e 

A
dd

re
ss

 
P

ho
ne

 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

N
am

e 

A
dd

re
ss

 
P

ho
ne

 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

N
am

e 

A
dd

re
ss

 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
ho

ne
 

N
am

e 

A
dd

re
ss

 
P

ho
ne

 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 H

E
A

R
IN

G
 h

el
d 

by
 

M
ag

is
tra

te
 

0 
n 

w
ith

 

D
ec

is
io

n 

D
at

e 
S

et
 

M
ag

is
tr

at
e 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
tto

rn
ey

 fo
r 

th
e 

D
ef

en
da

nt
. 

B
A

IL
 

A
m

ou
nt

 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

S
ur

et
y 

9



Fonn 16.1-Arrest warrant 
Form Approved by 
SC Attorney General 
Section 17-13-160 
March 15, 1978 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF YORK 

Probation 

ARREST WARRANT 
Indictment Number: 21-GS-46-02999 

Warrant Number: W-46-21-0344 

State Identification No. (SID) 02407968 

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR COUNTY OR OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF YORK, AND ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS 
MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: 

It appearing from the attached affidavit that there are reasonable grounds to believe that NICHOLAS JOHN CAPUTO, did on the 19 day of October, 2021 violate 
the criminal laws of the State of South Carolina as set forth below: 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE· 

The offender has violated conditions 1, 2 1 7, 9 1 10 of the standard Department conditions associated with 
Section 24-21-430. The offender has also violated special conditions imposed by the General Sessions Court per 
order dated August 30, 2021. This warrant or citation is issued pursuant to section 24-21-450 or 300, 

Now, therefore, you are empowered and directed to arrest the said defendant and bring NICHOLAS JOHN CAPUTO before me forthwith to be dealt with according 
to law. A copy of this Arrest Warrant shall be delivered to the defendant at the time of its execution, o s soon thereafter as is practicable. Done at YORK, S. C. this 
12 day of~=· 

(L.S.) 

County of YORK 

ST ATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
Personally appeared before me, one Danzel Mitchell, who, first being duly sworn, deposes and says that NICHOLAS JOHN CAPUTO did within this County and State 
on the 12. day of~, 2Q2.1 violate the criminal laws of the State of South Carolina in the following particulars: 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: 
The offender has violated conditions 1 1 2, 7 1 9, 10 of the standard Department conditions associated with 
Section 24-21-430. The offender has also violated special conditions imposed by the General Sessions Court per 
order dated August 30 1 2021. This warrant or citation is issued pursuant to section 24-21-450 or 300. 

The affiant states that there is probable cause to believe that the defendant named above did commit the crime(s) set forth, and that such probable 
cause is based on the following facts: 

By failing to report as instructed to the Rock Hill office on 10/04/2021 and 10/05/2021 as evident by telephone 
contact on 10/04/2021 and 10/05/2021, Subject failed to make his whereabout known therefore has absconded. By 
failing to pay drug test fee as evident by owing $20.00, being 1 payment in arrears, By failing to pay court 
ordered fines as evident by owing $200,00, being 1 payment in arrears. By failing to pay regular supervision as 
evident by owing $50.00, being 1 payment in arrears. By failing to follow the advice and instructions of agent, 
Such actions constitute violation of conditions 1 1 2, 7 1 9 1 10:. 

Sworn to and Subscribed before me 
this 12 day of October, 2021. 

r:/k Address: 107 HECKLE BLVD. 
(L.S.) SUITE 3400, BOX 14 

-------s~1~g=-na~t~u~reC'"oC,=o°'t"'a=-ry7 "'u=1dc ....... ~-- ROCK HILL, SC 29732 

(803) 909-7282 

Fonn 16.1 (Template) [Revision 8 Revision Date 03/11/2015 Page1of2 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF YORK 
INDICTMENT 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on August 30, 2021, the Grand Jurors 

of York County present upon their oath: 

DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE 

The defendant, Nicholas John Caputo, did on or about May 10, 2021, in York 

County, drive a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol and/or any other drug 

or a combination of drugs and/or substances which cause impairment to the extent that 

the defendant's faculties to drive were materially and appreciably impaired and while 

having an alcohol concentration of less than .10%, such not being the first offense within 

a period of ten years including and immediately preceding the foregoing date, all in 

violation of Section 56-05-2930(A), Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976, as 

amended). 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 

KEVIN BAYONA 
ASSISTANT SOLICITOR 
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ST ATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF YORK 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

STATE 
VS. 

NICHOLAS JOHN CAPUTO 
AKA : 
Race: 
DOB: 

w 
 

Sex: 

Address:  Circle 

M 
SS# 

City, State, Zip : Greer, SC 29650 

DL#* SID# 

Age: 30 
 

SC02407968 

*CDL Yes D No D CMV Yes D No D Hazmat Yes D No D 

IN DICTMENT/CASE#: 202 l-GS-46-02999 

NW#: 
Date of Offense: 
S.C. Code§: 
CDR Code#: 

20213090034995 
05/10/2021 
56-05-2930(A) 
3356 

SENTENCE SHEET 

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was □ CONVICTED OF or ~ PLEADS 

TO: DUI less than .10, 2nd Offense (5 days to 1 year & $2,100-5,100) 

In violation of§ 56-05-2930(A) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code# 3356 

~ NON-VIOLENT □ VIOLENT □ SERIOUS □ MOST SERIOUS □ Mandatory G PS □ § 17-25-45 

(CSC w/minor I st or CSC w/minor 3'd) 

The charge is: As indicted, □ 
Lesser Included 
Offense, 

Defendant Waives Presentment ~ 
to Grand Jury. clef. 's initials) 

The plea is: D Without Negotiations or Recommendation, C8J Negotiated Sentence, D Recommendation by the State. 
ATTEST: 

e... 
Solicitor SC Bar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar # 

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the ~ ate Department of Correction 0 County Detention Center, 

for a determinate term of _j_ da;'ll1'111eFNh9 Time Served D Youthful Offender Act not to exceed _ years 

~ or to pay a fine of $2.1/0a provided that upon the service of ~ mQJJ.tbs 'y11s,l!fi#f'tfii1 Se, ved and or payment 

of$ J, / ('JO ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for ---"/_3 ____ _ 

~ /yMffi and s ubject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of probation, which are 
~ rated by reference. 

The sentence shall run 

□ CONCURRENT or □ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: 

cr The Defendant is to be g iven credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24- 13-40 to be calculated and appl ied by SCDOC. 

/ ~ 1~s 
□ '9oinclude time spent on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentencing. 

□ The Defendant Shall be Released from County Detention Center. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 922 and§ 16-25-30 it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of§ 16-25-20 or§ 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition. 
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